
MINUTES 
 

SEWRPC ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON REGIONAL WATER QUALITY 
MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE FOR THE GREATER MILWAUKEE WATERSHEDS 

 
 
DATE: October 31, 2006 
 
TIME: 1:30 p.m. 
 
PLACE: City of Mequon City Hall 
  Upper Level Council Chambers 
  11333 N. Cedarburg Road 
  Mequon, Wisconsin 
 
Committee Members Present 
Daniel S. Schmidt, Chairman SEWRPC Commissioner 
Michael G. Hahn, Secretary Chief Environmental Engineer, Southeastern 

   Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission 
Julie A. Anderson Director, Racine County Division of Planning and Development 
Martin A. Aquino Environmental Manager, Environmental Engineering, 
   (for Jeffrey J. Mantes)    City of Milwaukee 
Michael J. Ballweg Crops and Soils Agent, University of Wisconsin-Extension, 

   Sheboygan County 
John R. Behrens Commissioner-Secretary, Silver Lake Protection and 

   Rehabilitation District 
John M. Bennett City Engineer, City of Franklin 
Sharon L. Gayan Basin Supervisor, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
   (for James L. McNelly) 
Shawn Graff Executive Director, The Ozaukee Washington Land Trust, Inc. 
Andrew A. Holschbach Director, Ozaukee County Planning, Resources, 

   and Land Management Department 
Peter E. Hughes Assistant Center Director, Wisconsin Water Science Center, 
   (for Charles A. Peters)    U.S. Geological Survey 
Judy Jooss (for Diane M. Georgetta) Town and Country Resource Conservation and Development, Inc. 
William A. Kappel Director of Public Works, City of Wauwatosa 
Kristine M. Krause Vice-President, Environmental Department, We Energies 
James F. Lubner Sea Grant Advisory Services Specialist, 

   University of Wisconsin Sea Grant Institute 
Charles S. Melching Associate Professor, Civil & Environmental 

   Engineering, Marquette University 
J. Scott Mathie Director of Government Affairs, Metropolitan Builders 
   (for Matthew Moroney)    Association of Greater Milwaukee 
Gary A. Mick Director of Environmental Services, Milwaukee County 
Paul E. Mueller Administrator, Washington County Planning and Parks Department 
Jeffrey S. Nettesheim Director of Utilities, Village of Menomonee Falls 
Dean Perlick (for Joyce Fiacco) Manager of Planning, Dodge County 
Stephen Poloncsik Senior Staff Engineer, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
   (for Peter G. Swenson) 
Kevin L. Shafer Executive Director, Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District 
Thomas A. Wiza Director of Engineering and Public Works, City of Cedarburg 
 



-2- 
 
 

Staff Members and Guests 
Joseph E. Boxhorn Senior Planner, Southeastern Wisconsin Regional 

   Planning Commission 
Marsha B. Burzynski Regional Water Quality Planner, Wisconsin 
    Department of Natural Resources 
Michael Schwar (for William Krill) HNTB Corporation 
Thomas M. Slawski Principal Planner, Southeastern Wisconsin 

   Regional Planning Commission 

 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

Mr. Schmidt thanked the Advisory Committee members for attending this meeting. He indicated that roll call 
would be accomplished with a sign-in sheet circulated by Commission staff. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 27, 2006 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there were any additions or revisions to be made to the minutes of the September 27, 2006, 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
Ms. Jooss noted the following typographical error: the word “be” should be deleted from the last sentence of the 
second Secretary’s Note on page 4. 
 
There being no further additions or revisions, the minutes were approved as revised, on a motion by Mr. Behrens, 
seconded by Mr. Holschbach, and carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE LAST ELEVEN SECTIONS FROM THE 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT OF CHAPTER X, “SURFACE WATER QUALITY 
CONDITIONS AND SOURCES OF POLLUTION IN THE MILWAUKEE 
HARBOR ESTUARY AND ADJACENT NEARSHORE LAKE MICHIGAN AREAS,” 
OF SEWRPC TECHNICAL REPORT NO. 39, WATER QUALITY CONDITIONS 
AND SOURCES OF POLLUTION IN THE GREATER MILWAUKEE WATERSHEDS 

Mr. Schmidt asked Mr. Hahn to review the following sections from the preliminary draft of the chapter: 

• Water Quality at Lake Michigan Beaches 

• Water Quality of the Nearshore Lake Michigan Areas 

• Water Quality of Lakes and Ponds in the Lake Michigan Direct Tributary Drainage Area 

• Toxicity Conditions of the Milwaukee Harbor Estuary, Lake Michigan Direct Tributary Drainage 
Area, and the Adjacent Nearshore Lake Michigan Areas 

• Biological Conditions of the Milwaukee Harbor Estuary, Lake Michigan Direct Tributary Drainage 
Area, and the Adjacent Nearshore Lake Michigan Areas 

• Channel Conditions and Structures 

• Habitat and Riparian Corridor Conditions 



-3- 
 
 

• Summary and Status of Elements of the Regional Water Quality Management Plan in the Milwaukee 
Harbor Estuary, Lake Michigan Direct Tributary Drainage Area, Adjacent Nearshore Lake Michigan 
Areas 

• Sources of Water Pollution 

• Achievement of Water Use Objectives in the Milwaukee Harbor Estuary, Lake Michigan Direct 
Tributary Drainage Area, Adjacent Nearshore Lake Michigan Areas 

• Summary 

Mr. Hahn began by explaining that four sections of the preliminary draft chapter were presented at the August 29, 
2006, meeting of the Committee. Mr. Hahn indicated that, with one exception, the sections to be reviewed 
constitute the remaining sections of the preliminary draft of the chapter. He noted that Commission staff is still 
analyzing data related to concentrations of polychlorinated biphenyls in water and will present this subsection at a 
later date. Mr. Hahn also explained that the chapter will be presented in separate sections by Mr. Thomas M. 
Slawski, Mr. Joseph E. Boxhorn, and himself. 
 
Mr. Boxhorn began by summarizing the section on water quality at Lake Michigan beaches. 
 
Mr. Lubner noted that Cladophora is misspelled in the second sentence in the first full paragraph on page 8. 
 
[Secretary’s Note:  The spelling was corrected.] 

Mr. Boxhorn then summarized the water quality in the nearshore Lake Michigan areas section. 

Ms. Jooss noted that the arrows indicating the direction of improving water quality in Figure X-61 point in the 
wrong direction. 

[Secretary’s Note:  Figure X-61 was corrected.] 

Ms. Jooss noted Figures X-58 and X-60 lack arrows indicating the direction of improving water quality. Mr. 
Lubner noted that Figure X-59 has such an arrow, but it points in the wrong direction. Mr. Slawski explained that 
because both high and low concentrations of dissolved oxygen are detrimental to fish, dissolved oxygen graphs in 
preceding chapters of the technical report the report used hatching to indicate concentrations that constitute poorer 
water quality. Mr. Slawski indicated that such hatching would be added to Figures X-58, X-59, and X-60. 

[Secretary’s Note: The revisions were made.] 

Ms. Jooss noted typographical errors or minor omissions on page 16. Mr. Lubner noted typographical errors or 
minor omissions on pages 22, 23, and 24. 

[Secretary’s Note: Those errors or omissions were corrected.] 

Mr. Holschbach asked why concentrations of arsenic are increasing when concentrations of some other heavy 
metals are decreasing. Mr. Boxhorn replied that he did not know the cause of the increase in arsenic 
concentration. 

Mr. Boxhorn summarized the water quality of lakes and ponds and toxicity conditions of the Milwaukee Harbor 
estuary, Lake Michigan direct tributary drainage area, and the adjacent nearshore Lake Michigan areas sections. 

Mr. Lubner noted typographical errors or minor omissions on pages 28 and 31. 



-4- 
 
 

[Secretary’s Note: Those errors or omissions were corrected.] 

Mr Lubner noted that the first partial sentence on page 29 indicates that concentrations of atrazine in Lake 
Michigan were expected to increase to a concentration of 0.066 µg/l by 2263 and asked whether the date given 
was correct. Mr. Boxhorn explained that the forecast made by the Lake Michigan Mass Balance Study was that 
atrazine concentrations in the Lake would not reach equilibrium until 2063. Mr. Boxhorn also noted that this 
concentration was below the level considered harmful by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 

Mr. Ballweg noted that the discussion of pesticides in the chapter cited data from 1994 and 1995 and asked 
whether more recent data were available. Mr. Boxhorn replied that Commission staff was unable to find more 
recent data for dissolved concentrations of pesticides in Lake Michigan. He noted that some of the sediment core 
data are more recent and that more recent data on dissolved concentrations of pesticides in the rivers were 
documented in chapters previously reviewed by the Committee. Mr. Mueller asked whether the pesticides 
dieldrin, chlordane, and atrazine are still licensed for use. Mr. Boxhorn indicated that dieldrin and chlordane are 
no longer used, but that atrazine is still in use. Mr. Ballweg noted that the use of atrazine has declined over the last 
decade because of the availability of other options. Mr. Slawski asked if Mr. Ballweg could provide numbers on 
the quantities used. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: Mr. Ballweg provided additional; information after the meeting and the Commission staff is 

coordinating with him regarding the interpretation of that information.] 

Mr. Boxhorn noted that the Commission staff was recently informed by the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) that 
their work on the polychlorinated biphenyl data set is complete. He said that the Commission staff would analyze 
these data and present the results at a future meeting of the Committee. 

Mr. Lubner asked if there was a key indicating what the colors mean in Figures X-76, X-77, X-78, and X-79. Mr. 
Boxhorn replied that the colors indicate individual sediment cores. Mr. Slawski noted that an explanatory note 
could be added to the figures. Mr. Wiza said that the graphs were hard to understand. Mr. Boxhorn indicated that 
the graphs will be redesigned. Ms. Burzynski said that she would be able to provide illustrations of an alternative 
data presentation. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The Commission staff is redesigning Figures X-76 through X-79 and will provide them to 

the Committee at a future meeting.] 

Mr. Slawski then began a summary of the biological conditions, channel conditions, and habitat and riparian 
corridor conditions of the Milwaukee harbor estuary, Lake Michigan direct tributary drainage area, and the 
adjacent nearshore Lake Michigan areas. 
 
Mr. Slawski distributed copies of an article from the Journal of the American Water Resources Association. He 
noted that this paper addresses an unresolved issue in the analysis of water chemistry data. He indicated that the 
graphs on page 1117 of the article show that exceedingly high concentrations of dissolved oxygen have been 
reported in other streams. He said that this appears to occur in concrete-lined streams with low depth, laminar 
flow, and high light penetration. He indicated that this information will be incorporated into Chapter II of TR-39. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The article distributed to the Committee is attached hereto as Exhibit A.] 

Mr. Slawski noted a typographical error in the title to Figure X-82. 

[Secretary’s Note: The error was corrected.] 



-5- 
 
 

Mr. Slawski noted that the data analysis of biological conditions in the Milwaukee harbor estuary and adjacent 
nearshore Lake Michigan areas did not utilize biotic indices because these indices are not designed for Lake 
Michigan or nearshore systems. 

Mr. Lubner noted that the word “alga” in the second line of the second full paragraph of page 37 should be 
changed to the plural form “algae.” He further noted that the word “algae” that occurs twice in the fifth line of the 
second full paragraph of page 37 should be changed to the singular form “alga.” 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The text was revised as suggested.] 

Regarding the subsection on Exotic Invasive Species on pages 42 and 43, Mr. Lubner suggested that food web 
changes in Lake Huron may also provide insight into trends that may occur in Lake Michigan. He noted that 
natural reproduction of introduced salmonids in Lake Huron has resulted in decreases in the size of the alewife 
population, endangering the top predator fishery. Mr. Slawski replied that Commission staff would examine this. 
 
Mr. Lubner suggested that the word “zebras” in the first and third lines of the third bullet point on page 43 be 
changed to “zebra mussels.” Ms. Jooss noted that the formats of the bullet points were inconsistent and suggested 
rewriting them for greater consistency. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: Beginning with the last line on page 42, the section was revised to read as follows (In these 

revisions and subsequent revisions in these minutes, added text is indicated in bold letters): 

“Zebra mussels have indirectly led to: 

• “Algal Blooms and Dead Zones—Algal blooms have resulted from the enormous 
volumes of waste the mussels release as part of their feeding, which is high in 
algae-promoting phosphorus. The algal blooms have caused taste and odor 
problems for municipal water supplies. The combination of zebra mussel waste and 
clearer water allows algae to grow at greater depths, where there is less oxygen. 
When the mussels decay, oxygen is depleted, which creates a dead zone. 

• Disappearance of Diporeia—(As noted above, filtering by zebra mussels has 
reduced the phytoplankton populations that Diporeia feeds upon.) Diporeia are 
a vital food source for smaller fish like alewife, bloater, smelt, and sculpin, and 
reductions in the number of those fish results in less food for the bigger and 
commercially important fish such as trout, perch, whitefish, walleye, and salmon. 

• Deaths of Fish-Eating Birds—As the zebra mussels filter massive amounts of 
water, they also ingest and absorb toxins and contaminants. Diving ducks such as 
the greater and lesser scaup thrive on zebra mussels, and their populations 
increased temporarily. For the past few years, scaup have been dying in large 
numbers as a result of type-E botulism, a toxin produced by a bacterium that 
concentrates inside the zebra mussels.  

• Increased Transfer of Toxicants to Predatory Fishes and Birds—As gobies 
consume zebra mussels, they further concentrate the contaminants and bacteria that 
the mussels have filtered from the water. Fishes and birds that feed extensively on 
the gobies can become poisoned and die.”] 

Mr. Hahn then began a summary of the summary and status of implementation of the elements of the regional 
water quality management plan and the sources of water pollution in the Lake Michigan direct drainage area. He 
noted that inventories for the estuary and inner harbor have been presented in chapters previously reviewed by the 



-6- 
 
 

Committee. Mr. Hahn also noted one correction to the subsection Combined Sewer Overflows (CSOs) on page 50. 
MMSD has two CSO outfalls in the Lake Michigan direct drainage area. Outfall 145 was previously inventoried. 
Map X-18 and Table X-22 are being corrected to reflect this. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The third paragraph on page 50 was revised as follows: 

The second sentence was revised to read: 

“MMSD has two combined sewer overflow outfalls that discharge directly to Lake 
Michigan.” 

The seventh sentence was revised to read: 

“Over the period August 1995 to August 2002, the mean number of days during which 
individual outfalls discharged to streams in the watershed was 41. 

The ninth sentence was revised to read: 

“The number of days over which outfall discharged ranged between 34 and 47 days. 

The twelfth sentence was revised to read: 

“Others occurred over a larger portion of the CSO area, involving discharge from both 
outfalls into the Lake.” 

The last sentence was deleted.] 

Mr. Hahn noted that the blue area shown on Map X-20 appears too small based on the quantification of acreage 
developed in 1980 or before that are served by onsite sewage disposal systems. He indicated that Commission 
staff will examine this apparent discrepancy and revise the map, if necessary. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The Commission staff subsequently determined that the quantification and the depiction on 

Map X-20 were correct. However, because much of the blue area on the map consists of 
small areas which are adjacent to other features such as watershed boundaries or stream 
lines, they are difficult to discern. Map X-20 has been revised to show these areas more 
clearly.] 

Regarding the subsection on Urban Enclaves Outside Planned Sewer Service Areas on page 53, Mr. Mueller 
asked how many individual onsite sewage disposal systems are present that are not located within urban density 
enclaves. He indicated that there may be many systems that are not located in urban enclaves and that most were 
probably installed prior to 1980. He said that the discussion in the subsection gives too much weight to the 
maintenance program. While the program requires proof of periodic pumping, it does not require inspections or 
monitoring of volumes. As such, he noted, it does not assure that systems are functioning properly.  
 
[Secretary’s Note: The following footnote was added at the end of the fourth sentence in the first full 

paragraph on page 53: 

“There are scattered, additional properties served by onsite systems that do not meet the 
urban density definition applied for the SEWRPC land use inventory. Thus, they are not 
indicated on Map X-20.”  

The following sentences were added after the second to last sentence in the first full 
paragraph on page 53: 



-7- 
 
 

“The age of an onsite sewage disposal system is of concern regarding the potential for 
surface water pollution because as a system ages it becomes more susceptible to failure and 
certain older systems may have been constructed to less stringent standards than newer 
systems. Systems installed prior to about 1980 are unregulated; are not systematically 
replaced; and are not required to be evaluated, including at the time of sale of a property.” 

Also, the fifth and sixth sentences in the second full paragraph on page 53 were revised to 
read: 

“Onsite systems that are installed, replaced, or rehabilitated after the date on which the 
county or community elects to participate are required to be pumped periodically and the 
owners of these systems are required to provide proof of pumping to local authorities. 
The program does not require field inspections of onsite systems or monitoring of 
volumes discharged from those systems. Thus, given the 1978 date of establishment of 
the grant program, the determination of areas developed with onsite systems before 1980 
and those developed in 1980 or later, provides an indication of which systems are subject to 
reporting requirements and which are not.” 

Similar changes will be made to the Urban Enclaves Outside Planned Sewer Service Areas 
subsections in Chapters V through IX of the technical report.] 

 
Ms. Krause indicated that the term “sanitary landfill” in the first sentence of the second full paragraph on page 54 
and in the fifth sentence of the first full paragraph on page 63 should be change to “solid waste landfill.” 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The suggested changes were made.] 

Ms. Jooss noted that the last two sentences in the second full paragraph on page 55 were confusing and suggested 
that they be revised. 
 
[Secretary’s Note: The sentences were revised to read as follows: 

“Despite the implementation of certain practices aimed at controlling soil erosion from 
agricultural land, and development of soil erosion plans and/or land water resource 
management plans for Milwaukee, Ozaukee, and Racine Counties, such erosion and the 
deposition of sediment in the streams of the Lake Michigan direct drainage area remains a 
problem. Relative to urban nonpoint sources, soil erosion from agricultural lands is a 
relatively minor source of sediment and nutrients in the streams of the Lake Michigan 
direct drainage area.”] 

Mr. Lubner noted typographical errors or minor omissions on pages 57, 60, and 63. 

[Secretary’s Note: Those errors or omissions were corrected.] 

Ms. Krause asked what the significance of the time periods in Figure X-83 were and whether this was explained 
in the text. Mr. Boxhorn replied that the first period ended when the MMSD stopped sampling during the winter, 
the second period ended when the Inline Storage System came online, and that the remaining time was divided 
into two periods to assess changes in water quality over time. Mr. Boxhorn also noted that these periods were 
described both in Chapter III and in the portion of Chapter X previously reviewed by the Committee. 
 



-8- 
 
 

A motion to approve preliminary draft Chapter X, “Surface Water Quality Conditions and Sources of Pollution in 
the Milwaukee Harbor Estuary and Adjacent Nearshore Lake Michigan Areas,” of TR No. 39, as amended, was 
made by Mr. Lubner, seconded by Mr. Nettesheim and was carried unanimously by the Committee. 
 
COMMENTS ON CHAPTER X, OF SEWRPC TECHNICAL REPORT NO. 39 
AS PROVIDED BY WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
(WDNR) STAFF FOLLOWING THE COMMITTEE MEETING 

WDNR staff indicated that concentrations of fecal coliform bacteria in the Milwaukee outer harbor should be 
compared to the standards for full recreational use instead of the variance standards that apply to the Milwaukee 
harbor estuary.  
 
[Secretary’s Note: Commission staff will make these comparisons and revise Figures X-2 and X-3 and 

Table X-36. These will be presented to the Committee at a future meeting.] 
 
The WDNR staff intends to provide additional comments on the draft chapter. When these meeting minutes were 
finalized, in order to provide them to the Advisory Committee before the next meeting, the WDNR comments had 
not yet been received. 
 
COMMENTS ON CHAPTER X, OF SEWRPC TECHNICAL 
REPORT NO. 39 AS PROVIDED BY OZAUKEE WASHINGTON 
LAND TRUST FOLLOWING THE COMMITTEE MEETING 

Mr. Graff noted that he provided sections of the draft chapter to board members of the Ozaukee Washington Land 
Trust and that the Ozaukee Washington Land Trust intends to provide additional comments on the draft chapter 
When these meeting minutes were finalized, in order to provide them to the Advisory Committee before the next 
meeting, the Ozaukee Washington Land Trust comments had not yet been received. 
 
DETERMINATION OF NEXT MEETING DATE AND LOCATION 

The next meeting of the Advisory Committee was scheduled for Wednesday, November 29, 2006, beginning at 
1:30 p.m. at the Mequon City Hall in the upstairs Council Chambers. [FOLLOWING THE OCTOBER 31 
MEETING, THE DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING WAS CHANGED TO DECEMBER 14, 2006 AT 
1:30 P.M.] 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

The October 31, 2006, meeting of the Advisory Committee on the regional water quality management plan update 
was adjourned at 2:59 p.m. on a motion by Ms. Anderson, seconded by Mr. Bennett and carried unanimously by 
the Committee. 
 

*   *   * 
 
 
#122921 V1 - RWQMP UPDATE MINUTES 10/31/06 
300-5000 
MGH/JEB/pk 
12/05/06 
 



Exhibit A 
 

 










































